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Office of the Secretary, Education § 98.10

400 Maryland Avenue, SW., Wash-
ington, DC 20202. 

(Authority: 20 U.S.C. 1231e–3(a)(1), 1232h)

§ 98.6 Reports. 

The Secretary may require the re-
cipient to submit reports containing 
information necessary to resolve com-
plaints under section 439 of the Act and 
the regulations in this part. 

(Authority: 20 U.S.C. 1221e–3(a)(1), 1232h)

§ 98.7 Filing a complaint. 

(a) Only a student or a parent or 
guardian of a student directly affected 
by a violation under Section 439 of the 
Act may file a complaint under this 
part. The complaint must be submitted 
in writing to the Office. 

(b) The complaint filed under para-
graph (a) of this section must— 

(1) Contain specific allegations of 
fact giving reasonable cause to believe 
that a violation of either § 98.3 or § 98.4 
exists; and 

(2) Include evidence of attempted res-
olution of the complaint at the local 
level (and at the State level if a State 
complaint resolution process exists), 
including the names of local and State 
officials contacted and significant 
dates in the attempted resolution proc-
ess. 

(c) The Office investigates each com-
plaint which the Office receives that 
meets the requirements of this section 
to determine whether the recipient or 
contractor failed to comply with the 
provisions of section 439 of the Act. 

(Approved by the Office of Management and 
Budget under control number 1880–0507) 

(Authority: 20 U.S.C. 1221e–3(a)(1), 1232h)

§ 98.8 Notice of the complaint. 

(a) If the Office receives a complaint 
that meets the requirements of § 98.7, it 
provides written notification to the 
complainant and the recipient or con-
tractor against which the violation has 
been alleged that the complaint has 
been received. 

(b) The notice to the recipient or con-
tractor under paragraph (a) of this sec-
tion must: 

(1) Include the substance of the al-
leged violation; and 

(2) Inform the recipient or contractor 
that the Office will investigate the 
complaint and that the recipient or 
contractor may submit a written re-
sponse to the complaint. 

(Authority: 20 U.S.C. 1221e–3(A)(1), 1232h)

§ 98.9 Investigation and findings. 

(a) The Office may permit the parties 
to submit further written or oral argu-
ments or information. 

(b) Following its investigations, the 
Office provides to the complainant and 
recipient or contractor written notice 
of its findings and the basis for its find-
ings. 

(c) If the Office finds that the recipi-
ent or contractor has not complied 
with section 439 of the Act, the Office 
includes in its notice under paragraph 
(b) of this section: 

(1) A statement of the specific steps 
that the Secretary recommends the re-
cipient or contractor take to comply; 
and 

(2) Provides a reasonable period of 
time, given all of the circumstances of 
the case, during which the recipient or 
contractor may comply voluntarily. 

(Authority: 20 U.S.C. 1221e–3(a)(1), 1232h)

§ 98.10 Enforcement of the findings. 

(a) If the recipient or contractor does 
not comply during the period of time 
set under § 98.9(c), the Secretary may 
either: 

(1) For a recipient, take an action au-
thorized under 34 CFR part 78, includ-
ing: 

(i) Issuing a notice of intent to termi-
nate funds under 34 CFR 78.21; 

(ii) Issuing a notice to withhold funds 
under 34 CFR 78.21, 200.94(b), or 
298.45(b), depending upon the applicable 
program under which the notice is 
issued; or 

(iii) Issuing a notice to cease and de-
sist under 34 CFR 78.31, 200.94(c) or 
298.45(c), depending upon the program 
under which the notice is issued; or 

(2) For a contractor, direct the con-
tracting officer to take an appropriate 
action authorized under the Federal 
Acquisition Regulations, including ei-
ther: 

(i) Issuing a notice to suspend oper-
ations under 48 CFR 12.5; or 

VerDate jul<14>2003 13:00 Jul 29, 2003 Jkt 200128 PO 00000 Frm 00297 Fmt 8010 Sfmt 8010 Y:\SGML\200128T.XXX 200128T



298

34 CFR Subtitle A (7–1–03 Edition)Pt. 99

(ii) Issuing a notice to terminate for 
default, either in whole or in part 
under 48 CFR 49.102. 

(b) If, after an investigation under 
§ 98.9, the Secretary finds that a recipi-
ent or contractor has complied volun-
tarily with section 439 of the Act, the 
Secretary provides the complainant 
and the recipient or contractor written 
notice of the decision and the basis for 
the decision. 

(Authority: 20 U.S.C. 1221e–3(a)(1), 1232h)

PART 99—FAMILY EDUCATIONAL 
RIGHTS AND PRIVACY

Subpart A—General

Sec.
99.1 To which educational agencies or insti-

tutions do these regulations apply? 
99.2 What is the purpose of these regula-

tions? 
99.3 What definitions apply to these regula-

tions? 
99.4 What are the rights of parents? 
99.5 What are the rights of students? 
99.6 [Reserved] 
99.7 What must an educational agency or 

institution include in its annual notifica-
tion? 

99.8 What provisions apply to records of a 
law enforcement unit?

Subpart B—What Are the Rights of Inspec-
tion and Review of Education 
Records?

99.10 What rights exist for a parent or eligi-
ble student to inspect and review edu-
cation records? 

99.11 May an educational agency or institu-
tion charge a fee for copies of education 
records? 

99.12 What limitations exist on the right to 
inspect and review records?

Subpart C—What Are the Procedures for 
Amending Education Records?

99.20 How can a parent or eligible student 
request amendment of the student’s edu-
cation records? 

99.21 Under what conditions does a parent 
or eligible student have the right to a 
hearing? 

99.22 What minimum requirements exist for 
the conduct of a hearing?

Subpart D—May an Educational Agency 
or Institution Disclose Personally Identi-
fiable Information From Education 
Records?

99.30 Under what conditions is prior consent 
required to disclose information? 

99.31 Under what conditions is prior consent 
not required to disclose information? 

99.32 What recordkeeping requirements 
exist concerning requests and disclo-
sures? 

99.33 What limitations apply to the re-
disclosure of information? 

99.34 What conditions apply to disclosure of 
information to other educational agen-
cies or institutions? 

99.35 What conditions apply to disclosure of 
information for Federal or State pro-
gram purposes? 

99.36 What conditions apply to disclosure of 
information in health and safety emer-
gencies? 

99.37 What conditions apply to disclosing di-
rectory information? 

99.38 What conditions apply to disclosure of 
information as permitted by State stat-
ute adopted after November 19, 1974, con-
cerning the juvenile justice system? 

99.39 What definitions apply to the non-
consensual disclosure of records by post-
secondary educational institutions in 
connection with disciplinary proceedings 
concerning crimes of violence or non-
forcible sex offenses?

Subpart E—What Are the Enforcement 
Procedures?

99.60 What functions has the Secretary dele-
gated to the Office and to the Office of 
Administrative Law Judges? 

99.61 What responsibility does an edu-
cational agency or institution have con-
cerning conflict with State or local laws? 

99.62 What information must an educational 
agency or institution submit to the Of-
fice? 

99.63 Where are complaints filed? 
99.64 What is the complaint procedure? 
99.65 What is the content of the notice of 

complaint issued by the Office? 
99.66 What are the responsibilities of the Of-

fice in the enforcement process? 
99.67 How does the Secretary enforce deci-

sions?

APPENDIX A TO PART 99—CRIMES OF VIOLENCE 
DEFINITIONS

AUTHORITY: 20 U.S.C. 1232g, unless other-
wise noted.

SOURCE: 53 FR 11943, Apr. 11, 1988, unless 
otherwise noted.

VerDate jul<14>2003 13:00 Jul 29, 2003 Jkt 200128 PO 00000 Frm 00298 Fmt 8010 Sfmt 8010 Y:\SGML\200128T.XXX 200128T


